NEWINGTON TOWN PLAN AND ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
May 26, 2021
Chairman Domenic Pane called the regular Zoom meeting of May 26, 2021 to order at 7:00 p.m.
I.
II.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL AND SEATING OF ALTERNATES
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Commissioners Present
Chairman Domenic Pane
Commissioner Anthony Claffey
Commissioner Michael Fox
Commissioner Garrett Havens
Commissioner Stanley Sobieski
Commissioner Stephen Woods
Commissioner Hyman Braverman-A
Commissioner Thomas Gill-A
Commissioner Bryan Haggarty-A
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Commissioners Absent
Commissioner David Lenares
Commissioner Haggerty was seated for Commissioner Lenares.
III.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
No Changes

IV.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (For items not listed on the agenda; speakers limited to
two minutes. Use the Zoom "Raise Hand" function.
None

V.

REMARKS BY COMMISSIONERS
None

VI.

PUBLIC HEARING:

The documentsfor Public Hearing ItemsA-E, Petitions #19-21, 20-21, 21-21,22-21 and 23-21
are located below the Public Hearing Agenda Item E, Petition 23-21.
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A.

Petition 19-21: Special Permit (Sec. 3.19) and Associated Site Plan to construct
a residential Apartment Development in the PD Zone, at 3333 Berlin Turnpike,
Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company Applicant, HJG-PC Newington Investor
LLC Contact: BL Companies. Continued from May 12, 2021

B.

Petition 20-21: Special Permit (Sec. 3.19 and 3.15) and associated site plan to
allow a restaurant in the PD Zone, at 3333 Berlin Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky
River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC Newington Investor LLC Contact: BL
Companies. Continued from May 12, 2021.

C. Petition 21-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.19 and 3.15) and Associated Site Plan to
allow a place of physical activity or recreation in the PD Zone at 3333 Berlin
Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC
Newington Investor LLC, Contact: BL Companies. Continued from May 12,
2021
D.

Petition 22-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.19 and 3.15) and associated site plan to
allow a brew pub or a brew pub restaurant in the PD Zone at 3333 Berlin
Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC
Newington Investor LLC Contact: BL Companies. Continued from May 12, 2021

E.

Petition 23-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.19.3) and Site Plan Approval to allow a
retail development in excess of 40,000 square feet in the PD Zone,at 3333
Berlin Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC
Newington Investor LLC; Contact: BL Companies. Continued from May 12,
2021.

Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. We kept these petitions open because there were a
few small items, 1 think traffic and engineering that weren't completed and we wanted to give
staff a little while longer to look that over. What 1 would like to do is to keep it to all the new
information and then anything else on the site plan we can talk about under Old Business. I'll
turn it over to Renata. Renata, if you could give us a report on this?
Renata Bertotti: Absolutely. As you I'm sure, remember the applicant has presented this
project as one entire project all together and incorporated in their presentation everything that
was relevant to the proposal on the parcel that is going to be occupied by a residential
development as well as the commercial development. It was a long, very comprehensive
presentation and it is good that the Commission actually took a little bit of time to digest
everything that was communicated. You left it with my comment that, at the time we still had a
couple of comments with regards to drainage as well as we had at the time received the traffic
report, a very voluminous document and we hadn't had a chance to review it. We have since
completed the review and had met with the applicant. We had talked about the solutions that in
our opinion and in the applicant's opinion would address any concerns that the Commission
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could potentially have, in particular in regards to Pane Road and that junction at the access to
Pane Road. We had spoken, and the applicant had agreed to install flashing speed signs on
Pane Road going in both directions to help mitigate any speed issue that perhaps in this section
of the road. We had also discussed perhaps posting signage indicating that there is sort of a S
curve on Pane Road in that location. Our engineering division actually looked up that street and
we had realized that we have a number of signs of that nature posted already there, so posting
additional signage of that particular nature we didn't feel would be particularly beneficial. We
kind of backed off on that.
We also discussed a bit of Pane road and perhaps defining the travel lane and the applicant
indicated that they would stripe a section of Pane Road, especially going from the Berlin
turnpike to Best Buy area to indicated and better define those travel lanes.
We further talked about some other matters that it would still need to address on the traffic, such
as, and this is minor stuff, like sign your document, things like that. We had obviously reached
agreements on this, we had reached, at the time agreements that all of the drainage comments
could be addressed by them, and they fairly quickly turned around the submission to us with
revised plans and the documents for review. However, it all happened like the end of next
week, because the documents on Monday and then today, we were really going through the fire
drill with Engineering and 1 do appreciate their efforts today in trying to complete their reviews.
Final comment right now is that essentially all of the Planning comments have been addressed,
all of the zoning comments have been addressed. The Engineering has submitted a memo
which will be shown when you are ready to do your motions if you proceed by acting tonight that
essentially states that BL Companies has substantially address all of the engineering comments
but some minor and technical outstanding ones that still need slightly tweaked on the drainage
and plans. 1 have our Engineer in the room if anybody has questions, but as far as I'm
concerned, all these applications, the Commission, in my opinion at least in the technical merits
could act on. The applicant is here if you would like a short summary of anything that 1 haven't
covered and that's really all 1 have to say about this. 1 still support the project, there is a request
for deferral which is you know, originally it was presented to you as 56 spaces deferral which is
less than twenty-five percent, but the applicant revised that at the last meeting, that was
communicated to you as well, so in the motion on supporting a deferral of parking construction
up to twenty-five percent, and 1 find that the plans as submitted meet our POCD and meet the
nature of this district, and I recommend that the Commission approve this.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata, you and the staff and all of the hard work that
you did. I'm going to turn it over to the applicant and 1 would ask the applicant if we could keep
it to all of the new stuff, anything related to the traffic or the engineering that has been just
recently reviewed. Then we will go to Commissioners comments and questions and then we
will go right to the public. If the Commissioners have any questions on the older stuff, then we
will be addressing this under Old Business.
Chris Smith: Thank you Mr. Chairman, for the record, my name is Chris Smith, I'm a land use
attorney with the law firm of Alter and Pearson, and 1 appear before you this evening on behalf
on the applicant concerning this proposal for a mixed use development located at 3333 Berlin
Turnpike. Just or the record Mr. Chairman and members of the Commission, our entire team
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that was present at the May 12th public hearing is here this evening, including representatives
from the Grossman Development Group, Mr. Howard Grossman and Jaime Anderson and Jack
Englert from Criterion Development Partners. We have the entire team from BL Companies,
our licensed environmental profession Dr. Poland who did the physical impact analysis and our
architects for both the residential and commercial component. 1 was going to re-introduce
everybody but 1 don't think 1 have to do that for the record, to save time. 1 think Town Planner
Bertotti has done a wonderful job of summarizing the issues that were left open at the first public
hearing on May 12th' that were pursuant to your professional staff and departments that have
been addressed. Again, we do have everybody here this evening Mr. Chairman and Members
of the Commission if you have any questions on these new items, we can address those and
any of the old ones. Mr. Godere who is with BL Companies and is the senior project manager
can provide you with a summary and it will be just a summary of these new items if you would
like.
Chairman Pane: Certainly, that would be very helpful if you could provide a summary on the
new items. Thankyou.
Chris Smith: Thank you Mr. Chairman. Dennis!
Dennis Godere: Good evening, my name is Dennis Godere, senior project manager with BL
Companies. 1 will highlight and summarize briefly staring with comments as they came from the
Assistant Town Planer Mr. Hinckley, many of them had been cleaning up the plans and adding
some clarity, which we have addressed and 1 believe that he had also issued a comment
recently that all of his comments had been addressed, adding notations clarifying parking,
removing notations from the text amendment that had been previously approved. As the Town
Planner Bertotti had mentioned, we had submitted revised plans, or plans 1 should say, related
to the off site improvements on Pane Road. That transpired after a meeting with staff, with
Engineering and the Police Department last Thursday where we are narrowing down the Pane
Road for a distance leading up to the entrance drive to the property; narrowing them down 1
should say by stripping and modifying the stripping, as well as adding the signage that was
already previously mentioned. We have been working diligently and 1 know that the Town
Engineering Department has been working diligently to review our submission on addressing
comments related to drainage. The vast majority are associated with the drainage swale
leading to Pane Road and into the pipe on, hopefully connecting to Pane Road and 1 believe we
have agreed to, 1 should say have addressed those substantially in their opinion. There might
be some items that we may need to further work through but we have added most of the
notations, added the drainage analysis that was requested. One such item was also to inspect
the 56 inch pipe that led into Pane Road to ensure that it is adequate as far as structural
integrity, which is understandable, and we certainly were agreeable to doing such. There were
some other comments associated with the on-site detention areas and providing analysis for
those underground storage areas which have been provided as well as the bypass for a pipe
that was connecting from some of the wetlands on the northem side of the property, to the
southern portion of the property. 1 think that is sort of the hightights and if there are more
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details, as Attorney Smith had mentioned, we have our experts here that can dive into them in
more detail.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. I'll open it up to the Commissioners. Do any of the
Commissioners have any questions for either the Town Planner or the applicant?
Commissioner Sobieski: This is a very great job, I'm very pleased with it. 1 just have one
question, do you at some point intend to widen out Pane Road between your driveway and the
Berlin Turnpike?
Dennis Goodere: There's no attempt to widen Pane Road. We are maintaining the existing
curb cut that is there and have provided the adequate turning radius for vehicles to maneuver in
and out.
Commissioner Sobieski: Okay, thank you.
Chairman Pane: Any other questions from the Commissioners? Hearing none, we are going to
go to the public. Is there anybody regarding the application wishing to speak in favor? Please
raise your hand if you would like to speak in favor of this application. Anybody wishing to speak
in opposition to this application? Anybody wishing to speak in opposition? Hearing none, if
there is no objection from the Commissioners, 1 suggest that we close this public hearing and
moveittoOld Business for Petitions 19-21, 20-21, 21-21,22-21,and 23-21.
Commissioner Sobieski so moved, seconded by Commissioner Claffey.
Chairman Pane: Any questions, any comments.
After a roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously with seven voting YEA.
F. Petition 24-21, Special Permit (Sec. 3.2.7) to allow a religious event at 155
Lowrey Place, Applicant; Church Catedral De Adoracoa, Owner: Lowrey Place
Realty, LLC, Contact Fernanda De Lisie.
Commissioner Braverman: 1 just wanted to say I'm attending the meeting, I'm sorry that I'm
late.
Chairman Pane: Commissioner Braverman, when we get to Old Business and we talk about
3333, remind me that you will be seated because Commissioner Fox, if I'm not mistaken didn't
feel comfortable voting on that. Just wanted to let you know, okay?
Commissioner Braverman: Thank you.
Chairman Pane: We'll go to the applicant.
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Fernanda DeLisle: Hello, I'm representing Catedral De Adoracoa Church and we are
requesting one day permission to have our youth service, to have an event in the parking lot of
the church. This event is going to be, we are planning to have on June 19th, between six p.m.
and nine p.m. It's going to be a very small group around, max around sixty people, youth
people and we are going to have worship, we are going to have music and we are going to have
our pastor preach for everybody.
Chairman Pane: Very good, sounds good. Thank you very much. We'll go to the Town
Planner now, Renata, if you could give us a report?
Renata Bertotti: As presented, this is a one time event. They are indicating that they will be
using some sort of noise amplifying device, but at a modest level. This is generally surrounded
immediately by commercial businesses and places that I would imagine that would have no
complaints about this. There is some residential properties in the vicinity, so it is important to
consider that this is a one time event, that it is taking place between six and nine, one night
only, and if that is acceptable to the Commission, then t recommend that you approve it.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata. Are there any questions from the
Commissioners? Hearing none, we will go right to the public. Is there anybody wishing to
speak in favor of this application, that would like to say something?
Rose Lyons, 46 Elton Drive: 1 just want to say 1 think this is a great idea. It's nice to see that a
church is engaging the youth at an event like this. Twenty-five years ago 1 worked with St.
Mary's group of youth and there were 25 to 30 teenagers that were involved in that program,
and they took a lot away from it. They have been very active in their communities, they have
gone out of Newington, some are still in Newington, and I'm just thrilled to see something like
this coming before you tonight, so 1 would be in favor of it, and thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Ms. Lyons. Anybody else wishing to speak in favor of this
application? Anybody else? Anybody wishing to speak in opposition? Anybody from the public
wishing to speak in opposition to this application? Hearing none, if there is no objection from
the Commissioners, 1 would suggest that we have a motion to close Petition 24-21 and move it
to Old Business for action tonight.
Commissioner Fox moved to close Petition 24-21 and move it to Old Business for action tonight.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sobieski. The vote was unanimously in favor of
the motion, with seven voting YEA.
G. Petition 14-21: Re-subdivision at 16 Fenn Road to create one additional lot, PD
and TOD Overlay Zone, Applicant; Vincent Porzio & Dominick D'Angostino.
Owner, Fenn Road Associates, LLC, Contact Mark S. Shipman.
Chairman Pane: Welcome Attorney Shipman. If you could brief us on this I'd appreciate it.
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Attorney Shipman: This is a fairly simple application. We have a parcel that we are dividing in
two. We will have applications for the use of the front portion of the property, and there is no
present plan for the rear. The parcel complies in all respects to the subdivision regulations and
the two lots comply with the zoning requirements of the TOD zone. That shows lot A and B.
You will hear presentations for Lot A coming up, for a special permit and for site plan approval.
The application meets all of the requirements of the regulation and we have, staff had some
comments for us to address. Paul Symanski, my engineer is here if there are any questions,
otherwise this is short.
Chairman Pane: Very good. Thank you very much. Renata, do you have anything you would
like to fill us in with?
Renata Bertotti: This application is, and right now I'm only addressing the application for a resubdivision of the property, the parcels have been proposed as to meet the, one of the parcels
will meet the PD as well as TOD requirements of the zoning regulations. The smaller parcel,
Parcel B, will only meet a TOD overlay requirements in regards to the size of the parcel, etc.
This is in regards to just the subdivision of this application. We have found that it meets the
zoning regulations as well as the subdivision regulations, and as we are looking at this, without
any consideration for any kind of proposed development, it meets everything that it needs to
meet. The Commission can act on this in your administrative function, so once it meets all of
zoning and subdivision regs you would essentially just need to approve it, so we did not find
anything that is not compliant with our regs.
Chairman Pane. Thank you. Is there any questions from the Commissioners? Any questions
at all from the Commissioners? Hearing none, if there is no objection, we will go right to the
public. This is a public hearing, is there anybody that is with us tonight that would like to speak
in favor of this application? Please raise you hand. Is there anybody out there that would like to
speak in favor of this application. Is there anybody there that would like to speak in opposition
to this application? Please raise your hand. Anybody wishing to speak in opposition to this
application. Okay, hearing none, if there is no objection 1 would suggest to the Commissioners
to close Petition 14-21 and move it to Old Business for discussion.
Commissioner Havens moved to move Petition 14-21 to Old Business for discussion. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Haggerty. The vote was unanimously in favor of the
application with seven voting YEA.
H. Petition 15-21: Special Permit (Sec. 5.2 & 6.11) to allow a new carwash facility
at 16 Fenn road, Applicant: Vincent Porzio & Dominick D'Agostino, Owner: Fenn
Road Associates, LLC, Contact, Mark S. Shipman.
Mark Shipman: I have submitted, usually 1 have, read a narrative and then submit it to you at
the meeting. 1 have submitted one in advance and 1 would ask be added to the minutes of the
meeting. You will have it in front of you, and rather than spending the time reading it all, 1 will
just try to summarize. This application was brought because the car wash facility was
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considered to be an automotive use, and Section 6.11 sets forth the requirements for an
automotive use. 1 will address those quickly. It requires that fuel dispensers be thirty feet from
any street or right of way line. This application has no such equipment. It further requires
repairs to be contained in a building. No repairs will be done on this site. There are no
entrances or exits within a hundred feet of a church, school, playground or residence, no portion
of the lot is within a hundred feet of a residence. The building fagade is constructed of a
combination of materials that meet the standards of 6.11.6. There are no adjacent buildings, a
road separates this parcel from the buildings on the south and a right of way does so to the
north.
There are currently no buildings on the parcels to the south, beyond the right of way there is a
restaurant, and further north a shopping center. The proposed building provides a good
appearance and will blend with those and is in harmony with the neighborhood. We believe that
there is a necessity for the use, not everyone has the time, facility, ability or otherwise to wash
and care for their vehicles. With people keeping their cars longer these days, vehicle cosmetics
and care are very important. There is no other car wash in proximity to this location. There are
three buildings that require the need, bus drivers want clean vehicles. This location serves a
large section of the town, and 1 will turn this matter over to, obviously we had to file a site plan
with the application for special permit and 1 have Paul Symanski, who is prepared to go through
the site plan and the special permit requirements. 1 will be happy to address the
Commissioners, staff comments after the conclusion of that, and we will address any questions
as we go along.
Chairman Pane: Attorney Shipman, if we could keep the comments related to the special
permit and then when we, later in the agenda, we will be talking about the site plan under 16-21,
if that is okay with you.
Attorney Shipman: Well, it is, except that the special permit really covers many of the
requirements for the site plan, and the site plan covers many of the requirements of the special
permit and as 1 indicated, the special permit is only required because this is an automotive use.
I believe 1 have addressed the issue of the automotive use, unless staff has other comments
with respectthere to.....
Chairman Pane: No, you can proceed. If you need to go into some of the site plan because it
covers part of the special permit, then you an go ahead.
Attorney Shipman: Mr. Symanski, would you go forward?
Paul Symanski: Certainly, I'll provide a brief summary of the site plan. Good evening, Paul
Symanski, President of Arthur H. Howland Associates, Civil Engineers and Surveyors. The
subject property is a little over one acre in size. We are proposing an express car (inaudible)
wash. Patrons will enter from the northeast corner of the site, which is the lower right hand
corner on your screen. There are three lines of pay stations, so a patron will come in, they will
pay for the car wash, they will then have the opportunity to queue after the pay stations before
they travel towards Fenn Road where they then enter the car wash tunnel, there is a hundred
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and ten horse power blower at the end within the facility that blows the water off the cars. They
then exit the facility and travel in a westerly direction towards Fenn Road in a one way parking
area where there is vacuums on both sides of the access aisles, employee parking is on the
south end of the site, patrons can leave the southeast corner of the property and then continue
on with their day, whether it be to the other areas of the shopping plaza, to get a coffee at
Starbucks, etc.
We have extensive landscaping throughout the perimeter of the property and within the interior
landscaped islands. We have proposed lighting to be full cut-off. The only lights spillage from
the property is a new sidewalk that we are proposing along Fenn Road. This would allow
pedestrian circulation, oh, here is the lighting plan which shows that the only spillage is onto the
adjacent sidewalk, in the corner area where the Fastrack sign currently is, where sometimes
pedestrians stand and wait. There is a little patio area in the southwest corner. So we are
adding a sidewalk along the western side, that's the speckled, hatched that connects to the
patio in the southwest corner where there is a cross walk and it connects to the sidewalk that
then goes down to the Fastrack bus station, so currently there is no pedestrian connectivity on
Myra Cohen Way, we will now have that to make that full connection.
From the garbage perspective we have a dumpster enclosure on the eastern portion of the site,
that is to be fully enclosed and fenced with a vinyl enclosure so that no one will see the
dumpsters themselves.
We have landscaping which I'm showing in green, we have twenty-seven trees proposed, 77
shrubs, and 160 different pieces of ground cover. So we have tried to make the site as green
as possible. We also have some seasonal variations with respect to adding things such as
hydrangeas, and other flowing plants such as day lilies and mixing it up with some (inaudible) as
well, and then we have a number of evergreens, different types of spruces and conifers.
We also provided, for the record, a snow storage plan showing areas within the site where we
do have the opportunity to store snow without adversely impacting plans, that is something that
we sometimes see, the snow piled on the landscaping which then doesn't help long term
sustainability, so we have provided within the design the opportunity for snow storage outside of
the landscaping areas.
Storm water management is a series of catch basins tying into the State of Connecticut
drainage system, there is an existing detention pond off the site to the east which was sized to
accommodate future development of the site, so we are utilizing that.
Gas service and water service will be off the western part of the site, on Fenn Road, and a
similar connection will be to the north through the MDC lines.
The proposed vacuum stations are located on the south end of the property. There are 22 vac
stations total, there is a handicapped spot and three employee parking spaces.
From a traffic management perspective, we've provided over 30 queuing spaces, we've
provided a queuing analysis to demonstrate we have done the number of vehicles that can be
serviced in an hour, which is up to ninety. Basically we have less than a one percent chance of
one in ten vehicles that would queue at any one time. We have provided over 30 queuing
spaces.
That's it, in summary. I'd be happy to answer any questions you may have.
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Attorney Shipman: Before the questions, I'd just like to supplement it by stating the
requirements of Section, the special exception requirement, most of which have been covered.
The site plan is required under 7.4 and Mr. Symanski discussed it, specificatly the traffic
circulation and the stacking. Later on we will discuss, not at this point, but the site plan, the
storm water system and drainage, but the site plan shows the availability of utilities for the site,
and we will discuss the connections and permissions with respect to those utilities when we get
to the site plan.
There are really no adjacent properties to safe guard because they are both vacant and well
separated. The suitability of the building to the site is one that you will have before you with the
plans. (Inaudible) and travel have been discussed. 1 do want to point out that we, well, 1 will in
the site plan but we have asked for two waivers. 1 will leave it to your questions at this point.
Chairman Pane: Any questions from the Commissioners?
Commissioner Sobieski: As 1 said before, 1 don't believe we can waive anything. 1 think what
would have to happen is, because of the Mottolese decision, we would have to put this on hold
and go to the Zoning Board of Appeals and then come back. They typically said, if I'm not
mistaken, that we can't waive our own regulations.
Chairman Pane: Let's go to Renata. Renata, can you give us a report?
Renata Bertotti: Yes, actually 1 think it would be helpful to define this conversation a little so we
can direct our questions appropriately. At the special permit stage of this application, we do
essentially, in order for you to understand the use, you have to look at the site plan, however the
site plan specific relevant comments do not necessarily have to factor into your decision about
the use. However, in this instance, the applicant has been asking, or has asked, for, it's not a
waiver, it's a TOD incentive. It's an incentive to provide in our TOD District that allows in the
TOD District, developments that are suited for the TOD District, certain incentives, and under
those provisions the applicant has asked for the landscaping reduction, and the location of the
retaining wall. So, in order to even get to these incentives 1 think what is most important for the
Commission to consider at this stage of the process, is whether or not this use is a TOD use,
and 1 had in my memo outlined the purpose of the TOD Zoning District. 1 think, I also think the
way the whole thing looks is very relevant in this location, and it's relevant, not that at the site
plan stage, but at the special permit stage because the building design is directly related to the
use itself, and we're talking about use and how does the use fit within the special permit, right?
So the TOD incentives are not waivers, they are different things but in order to get to that
consideration you must agree that this use is a TOD type of use. If you look at our TOD
regulations, the Transit Oriented Development is intended to encourage transit oriented
development, development that brings people to buses and trains and things like that. While
the regulation is not intended to prohibit uses otherwise permitted in the PD Zone, which is why
this car wash is in front of you, it's a use that is referenced as a use that is special permitted
through the PD District.
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You have to use the, the TOD nature is to use the ability of proximity of the Fastrack to leverage
development for greater community economic use. We are talking about retail, commercial,
residential and statement of opportunities and you know, in my opinion, a car related vehicle, or
related use perhaps does not fit this TOD regulation. Now it is up to you to decide that
ultimately, whether that is true or not. Now, with this, you are looking at everything that is
related to impact, special permits are about impact. You will be asked to look at the building
design, and this location is a gateway into Newington, it's a good location for a car wash,
because it is a location that generates a lot of traffic. 1 don't know that we can not consider the
design of the building, and how it compares to what is around it, especially not in this particular
location.
The other thing that 1 will ask you to consider is that this Special Permit part of the application is
traffic and we have not completed, this is a comment on the site plan, we have not completed
vetted all of the comments yet, but one comment that came to me by e-mail by our Town
Engineer is that they are also questioning if the traffic report is designed, their traffic report is
designed for the TOD, and in that sense, it is acceptable. However, if this is not a TOD use,
then we have to do a little bit of recalculating with regards to the traffic generation. So, I hope 1
didn't confuse matters more, and this helps with your questions to the applicant.
Commissioner Sobieski: My question is, 1 didn't believe that we could waive the distance
between the wall and the property owner, that was my question. t have no other, as far as I'm
concerned, with the landscaping, this is just about waiving walls from property owners which
has to be five feet. That's my question. Other than that, 1 think the application is good, 1 just
think we can't waive this, it has to go to the Zoning Board of Appeals.
Chairman Pane: I'll let Renata go back and speak on that, but 1 don't think it's a waiver, it's one
of the TOD incentives. Renata, could you explain that one more time?
Renata Bertotti: Again, this is not a waiver, it is something that is allowed in the TOD regulation
under the provision of the TOD incentive. The TOD regulation was created to be flexible, to
accommodate the uses that are retail, commercial, residential, and opportunities for this area.
So, under those incentives, yes, you can do that, but you can only do that if you say that the car
wash is a TOD type of use on the property.
Chairman Pane: Thank you. Commissioner Sobieski, anything else?
Commissioner Sobieski: No, my question was, the car wash is fine, my question is the
proximity of the wall to the property line. That's all I'm questioning, I'm not questioning anything
else, the car wash is fine, I'm questioning the distance between the property line and the wall.
Chairman Pane: Maybe the applicant can answer that for us.
Paul Symanski: That wall is in relation to the grade change at the exit of the car wash facility so
it's basically to, if anyone has been out there, the grade basically along Myra Cohen Way drops
from Fenn Road down towards the Fastrack bus station. One of the things that we were trying
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to do in respect to the design was to lower the elevation on the westerly portion of the site near
Fenn Road. That required us to, in essence raise the elevation on the down gradient side or the
easterly portion of the site. When we raised that portion of the site, that necessitates a retaining
wall along the easterly boundary at the exit from the tunnel itself and that is the reason for the
wall in this instance, it's along the common property line, along a circulation driveway that is
going to connect Myra Cohen Way to the existing Stop and Shop plaza to again just allow for
better vehicular movement from this area.
Attorney Shipman: Does that answer the question?
Chairman Pane: Commissioner Sobieski?
Commissioner Sobieski: Like 1 said, I'm looking at the driveway here and again, all I'm saying
here is that when the decision came down, we were told point blank, when something like this
occurs, you have to go, we could not waive our standards, which would be five feet off the
property line.
Chairman Pane: This request to change the distance there on the wall is part of the TOD
incentive. If you feel that this is a TOD type of project, for that TOD area, they are asking for,
not waive, but they are asking for forgiveness on a couple of these items. So that is how it is.
We have to determine whether or not you think this is, this application falls within our TOD area.
Commissioner Sobieski: As far as I'm concerned a car wash is fine, I'm only stating, any time 1
hear the word waiver, the decision was clear. We can't waive anything but ZBA can. That's all
I'm saying.
Attorney Shipman: Mr. Chairman, may 1 address that for a moment?
Chairman Pane: Certainly.
Attorney Shipman: Neither of the requests are waivers. 3.19.8.4 actually provides that you are
permitted to grant these incentives under this zone, and this zone only. So they are not
waivers, they are merely utilizing the advantages that your regulation has set forth for uses in a
TOD Zone. We had originally submitted a third waiver of the radius on Fenn Road, and we are
convinced, we were convinced by staff that that could not be waived, that we have, as we will
indicate in the site plan preparation presentation that we have already filed for a variance of
that. But, neither of these requests are a variance.
Chairman Pane: Speaking of the last one, you are going to file a variance for the radius on the
road?
Attorney Shipman: We already have.
Chairman Pane: What's the hardship?
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Attorney Shipman: The hardship is that the State put in raised catch basins and there are
handicapped ramps off the required crosswalk and Paul Symanski had described it better, but
that is the reason that we are unable to achieve the twenty-five foot radius, and accommodate
the handicapped ramps and the raised catch basins. We are also speaking with the State as to
whether we can provide a different kind of a basin which would eliminate that problem, but Paul,
can you address that more clearly?
Paul Symanski: We are using the pre-existing, non-conforming curb cut with respect to the
radius that currently exists. That was previously approved by the State of Connecticut and is
already installed, so we are seeking to use the existing curb cut, not to propose any new curb
cuts.
Chairman Pane: Renata, does the proposed curb cut meet your requirements?
Renata Bertotti: The existing curb cut is in the place, the reason for the variance request is
going to be because the re-subdivision plan locates the lot line too close to the existing cut.
That will be in front of the ZBA, it's not necessarily something that you are evaluating here
tonight. That particular item is related to the site plan, it's not included in our TOD regulations,
as something that is an incentive that they could take advantage of, so it's for the later
application, which you can't actually act on the site plan, and 1 will say this later as well, because
this provision is not in the regulations.
Attorney Shipman: The special permit is separate from the site plan, but the site plan needs to
be considered as part of the special permit.
Chairman Pane: Thank you. Commissioner Gill, did you have a question?
Commissioner Gill: 1 have several questions, but 1 think they are all going to fall into the site
plan.
Chairman Pane: Okay, thank you. Commissioner Fox?
Commissioner Fox: My problem is, does a car wash actually come within the scope of TOD and
incentives? If it does, if you think, if the Commission thinks it does, all well and good, 1 don't
think so, so if it doesn't you would need a waiver to, for the wall being that close to the property
line, and we can't do that, you would have to go to ZBA. 1 think you would have to leave it to the
ZBA as to, do you have a hardship? Just a couple of questions, thank you.
Commissioner Woods: 1 think the applicant has made a presentation and 1 believe that he has
met the burden that he fits the TOD use for this property, in my opinion and 1 think the
Commission also need to remember that this piece of property, when the owner purchased it did
not have a road going through it. In some of these things that we are discussing now, he kind of
inherited when the State of Connecticut decided to put the bus stop down there and made this
road. It would have been much easier for him to subdivide it without that road being in there.
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Again, while it doesn't play a huge part, but 1 think it definitely does need to come into
consideration that that road wasn't there when this parcel originally was designed to be
subdivided. It would have made it a lot easier to work within the interior space and my definition
of what is proposed here and 1 also think he has met the burden, 1 think he has done a good job,
I think it does fit, maybe a little bit loosely, but it does fit the TOD overlay district and 1 plan on
supporting this unless 1 hear something otherwise as this public hearing continues.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Commissioner Woods. Any other questions?
Attorney Shipman: May 1 address the issue of whether we fit within the TOD Zone?
Chairman Pane: Certainly.
Attorney Shipman: With TOD Zone, it is necessary to look at what is transit related. If
approved, two other potential uses, one is a retail development and we don't really know what is
in it, other than one restaurant, the rest is vacant, in the plan, and a hotel. If those are transit
oriented uses is a subjective call. The language in the Plan of Conservation and Development
in describing this as an opportunity zone says that the development should, well, it
contemplates a variety of mixed uses, one of which is commercial. A car wash is a commercial
use. This parcel is too small to have mixed uses, i.e. residence, retail and commercial, so it is
commercial. Look at A under 3.19.A.2, the purpose of the District is to promote high quality
development, we believe that is, within walking distance of the Connecticut Fastrack station, it
is, which will grow Newington's grand list, it will, create employment, and provide Newington
residents with additional commercial opportunities. It will also provide, which is hasn't done
before is to provide a necessity, in my view, for area residents, passers by, and user of the
transit station to service and care for their cars. The development shall be in accordance with
the 2020 Plan of Conservation. The general goal of locating development, places (inaudible)
which support the overall character of Newington, including smaller, mixed use land uses.
1 looked at the Plan of Conservation and Development, under the opportunity provisions, it
mirrors 3.19.A.2 and we believe that we are totally within the description there, and I'm not sure
why a commercial development, when commercial is specifically stated, is not there. C is that
the purpose will be achieved through specific objectives and uses. The purpose, which is the
purpose of providing the requirements or the ideas that are set forth in that they will provide a
commercial use, it will provide a substantial development on a small parcel, it's not available for
mixed use, will provide both full time and part time jobs and will provide a service to the traveling
community and those using the transit station.
As far as the need of the location, there is not any other car wash within the neighborhood. It
could be determined that a car wash is something that is needed and that it fulfills the need, and
it is as Ms Bertotti indicated, a perfect location.
There is a public benefit, everyone who owns a vehicle benefits from this use. The facility will
have other amenities such as vacuums which are included and maybe the opportunity to buy
things for the car, such as small opportunities for your vehicle.
Whether the use enhances the vehicular and pedestrian circulation, we are providing a
connection from Myra Cohen Way to the shopping center. If that doesn't enhance a vehicular
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and pedestrian opportunities, then 1 don't know what does. That opens up that whole area
around the transit station for connection to the shopping center which it otherwise does not
have. The shopping center includes all of the elements that the TOD and POCD require for the
transit orientated district. It has restaurants, it has retail, has shopping, it has groceries, it has
all commercial, it has offices of varying nature, and without the connection that this plan
provides, that is not part of the TOD Zone, and it should be. It is, in terms of what the
geography that it encompasses for the TOD Zone.
So, the architecture issubjective. In staff meetings the applicant has indicated a willingness to
be amenable to changes in the architecture and if that is your desire, that's fine. We believe we
enhance the TOD District by our very presence developing this parcel and making the whole
area accessible to the shopping that is included in the district that is already developed as a
shopping center.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. Could you expand a little bit as far as what you are
talking about as far as the architecture? Is that, was the applicant willing to reduce the height,
I'm not sure if that was one of the things that Renata was concerned.
Attorney Shipman: 1 don't think the height was an issue, I think she was concerned with the
boating style, and what it looked like going into the building. You should realize that this is the
third, 1 believe, this would be the third facility developed by them. Other two are exactly what
was proposed here, and have been previously approved and the applicant would like to retain
some continuity. They are more interested in obtaining a car wash than fighting over what you
might feel is the most appropriate design. We would like to present to you our design and let
you comment and we will do that in the site plan portion of the hearing. Yes, we are amenable
but as far as the capabilities of the architecture for the proposed activity, they are perfect.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. Commissioner Gill?
Commissioner Gill: 1 just want to be sure that the site plan is going to include the roadway going
north and south and also the crosswalks on Myra Cohen. Is that going to be addressed on the
site plan.
Paul Symanski: Yes, that is correct.
Chairman Pane: Any other questions from the Commissioners? I'd like to go to the public,
provided that, Renata, you don't have anything else that you would like to add?
Renata Bertotti: No, but perhaps James, if it gets to any kind of discussion involving either a
site plan element or the building elevation, then James please display those.
Chairman Pane: Is there anybody from the public that would like to speak in favor of this
application? Anybody wishing to speak in favor of this application. Is there anybody wishing to
speak in opposition to the application? Is there anybody wishing to speak in opposition?
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Hearing none, and if there are no other Commissioner questions, 1 believe the Town Planner
stated that she and the staff needed a little more time to go over everything on this, so we will
have to leave this public hearing open, correct Renata?
Renata Bertotti: Mr. Chair, we are still looking at traffic, for example the traffic in particular, that
matter is not finalized yet. So, unless Gary, who again, is in the room, is prepared to essentially
say that he has reviewed and completed the traffic impact and he agrees with the analysis, we
would recommend that you keep it open. The essential question is, you have to tell us whether
or not you, as a Commission find the proposed use to be TOD compatible. If it is TOD
compatible then 1 believe Gary has communicated to me that the traffic impact letter is okay, but
he cannot say that unless you find it a TOD compatible use. The site plan, which is also part of
the special permit application cannot be acted on until this variance is obtained, so while you
don't necessarily have to keep the hearing open, that particular part, the site plan, cannot be
acted on.
Chairman Pane: Okay, since you bring the variance up again, is there any method that if they
didn't get the variance that they will be able to correct what they are supposed to correct here?
Renata Bertotti: Yes, there are a number of ways. They can re-design their subdivision
proposal, they can move the proposed curb cut. It is expensive and 1 don't know that they
would ever want to move the cut, but there are other ways in which this perhaps could be
accommodated by the subdivision, or another re-subdivision lot line adjustment.
Chairman Pane: Renata, is there something else that we are missing that we need to give you
direction on?
Renata Bertotti: No, the building height is probably the last one that 1 would like to talk to you
about, so right now, in an Industrial Zone we allow three stories and up to 45 height. 1 think in
this zone we probably should consider at least four stories, like we do in the PD Zone, and then
perhaps start with that, and see where we go. Even thought this area looks large on the map, it
really isn't, and the other complicated factor here is that whoever comes in for a development
will have to parcel this in somehow. So we are going to be constrained land wise, they are
going to be constrained in all kinds of ways, we have got to allow them to go up in order for this
project to economically work. If we restrict the height, 1 fear that we will impact economy,
economics of this so much that our regulations will be worthless and nothing will actually
happen.
Chairman Pane: 1 agree with you. Any other.
Commissioner Woods: 1 agree with Renata, 1 think we need to (inaudible), but 1 also think that if
we tried to do any more than that, 1 think we would get a lot of objections from the members of
our community. Once we start getting up over four stories, it becomes very controversial. 1 do
agree with you, while this looks like it is a big area of land, and it is, a 5,000 or 7,000 square foot
lot, but when you start developing this, this is not that big.
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Chairman Pane: 1 agree, and as Commissioner Woods stated, 1 agree that this is TOD
compatible. I'd like to get everyone else's opinion on this. Commissioner Haggerty?
Commissioner Haggerty: 1 think this does quality for the TOD overlay.
Chairman Pane: Thank you. Any other Commissioners?
Commissioner Havens: 1 concur with Commissioner Haggerty, CommissionerWoods and
yourself. 1 think this does fall in the TOD and 1 think it will be beneficial to that area of town.
Chairman Pane: Thank you. Any other Commissioners?
Commissioner Fox: I'm not one hundred percent convinced but 1 can see the view of those that
are, so 1 have no reason to quote unquote fight it, thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Commissioner Sobieski, are you okay with this being TOD
compatible?
Commissioner Sobieski: Yes.
Chairman Pane: Any other Commissioners? Okay, so 1 think Renata that the majority of the
Commissioner are in favor of this being TOD compatible. So, if that is the case, then 1 believe
what you are saying is the Town Engineer is acceptable to what he has looked at already for the
traffic and we can close this public hearing.
Renata Bertotti: Mr. Chair, the Town Engineer is in the room, so he can agree with that, but that
is my understanding.
Gary Furstenburg: Since the committee is finding that this is TOD compatible, then the traffic
study is consistent and meets all of the standards.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Gary, 1 appreciate it.
So, I'll entertain a motion to close the public hearing.
Commissioner Claffey moved to close the public hearing for Petition 15-21. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Havens. The vote was unanimously in favor of the motion with
seven voting YEA.
VII.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Claffey moved to accept the minutes of the May 12, 2021 Regular Meeting. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Haggarty. The vote was in favor of the motion, with six
in favor and one abstention (Fox.)

Newington TPZ Commission

VIII.

May 21, 2021
Page 18

NEW BUSINESS
A.

Petition 16-21: Site Plan Approval at 16 Fenn Road, Applicant: Vincent
Porzsio & Dominick D'Agostino, Owner, Fenn Road Associates, Contact
Mark S. Shipman.

Attorney Shipman: Renata has indicated that you may need an extension of time since you are
continuing the public hearing and you are not going to be able to approve the site plan until such
time that it is determined whether there is a variance, or whether a variance is needed. That
being the case, for the record, we would agree to an extension of time. Renata, is that what
you were looking for?
Renata Bertotti: Yes, there are still covered under the executive order but I'm afraid that the
executive order will expire and we are running against the sixty-five days that the Commission
has to render a decision on the site plan. In regards to the site plan only the applicant has
agreed to allow the Commission the extension and Mr. Shipman, is it a sixty-five day extension
that you are granting?
Attorney Shipman: Yes.
Renata Bertotti: Thank you.
Attorney Shipman: Paul, can you go through the site plan? Some of which you did already, so .....
Paul Symanski: I'll just do a quick recap for the record.
Attorney Shipman: Just address some of the things that weren't addressed, for instance the drainage
issues, and the like.
Paul Symanski: Forthe record again, Paut Symanski, Professional Engineer representing the applicant.
The subject property is slightly over one acre in size. Proposing a full service car wash, approximately, or
express service car wash approximately 5, 250 square feet in size. Patrons will enter from the northeast
portion of the site, and will then come into three pay stations with associated queuing lanes. Will then
travel to the entrance to the car wash tunnel where the cars will be fully treated within the facility itself. As
the patrons go through the car wash all the water is recycled and reutilized. Discharges into the public
sewer system. Prior to existing the tunnel, there is a 110 horsepower blower to blow all of the clean water
as part of the cycle, off of the car, the patrons then travel through a one way circulation parking lot where
there are vacuum stations on both sides of the aisles. Three employee parking spaces, one handicapped
spot, along with 22 vacuum spaces. The patrons then leave the site in the southeast corner, or they can
travel to the south on Myra Cohen Way or to the north to the Stop and Shop plaza.
As part of the proposal, we have proposed an extensive amount of landscaping around the perimeter of
the site, and within the interior island locations. Although we could have pushed the pay station driveway
circulations closerto the property line, which would have gotten us less interior landscaping, we felt it was
more advantageous to keep that closer to the building to provide additional landscaping along the
property line. So you will see, on both the northern property boundary, the westerly property boundary,
between the proposed sidewalk along Fenn Road, as well as the south property line along Myra Cohen
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Way, we have over 27 trees, 77 shrubs, and 160 different types of ground covers. We have provided an
abundance of landscaping on the site, a little over one quarter of the site is landscaped.
From a lighting perspective, you will see the solid hatched rectangles, those represent pole mounted full
cut off lighting, LED lighting. We have some doming mounted lighting as well, which goes around the
perimeter, that again is full cutoff lighting. The only light spillage off the property is onto the pedestrian
sidewalk that is proposed along Myra Cohen Way, just to encourage pedestrian use in this area as part of
the transit oriented development.
We have provided an abundance of snow storage. That is shown in the hatched, circular hatched areas,
so there is snow storage around the perimeter of the site, and we left areas outside of the actual
landscaped areas to accommodate the snow storage so that the landscaping will live and not be
destroyed during the winter months.
Storm water management, basicallythe roof leaders are piped into the storm water management system
within the site. There are a series of catch basins along the easterri side of the property, which catches
all of the storm water runoff from the site as well as the connecting access driveway between Myra Cohen
Way and the Stop and Shop Plaza. This discharges in a southeasterly direction into the existing State of
Connecticut drainage system and off the easterly portion of the property, which is part of the resubdivision earlier tonight, there is an existing storm water management pond which was sized to
accommodate the future development of both Lots A and B as part of the prior re-subdivision application
tonight.
As 1 have discussed as part of the special permit, we're providing over 30 queueing spaces within the site
so that we have the ability to service the patrons without them spilling onto the side road that connects
between Myra Cohen Way and the Stop and Shop Plaza. Based on our queuing analysis there is a one
percent chance that more than ten cars will be queued at any one time, and as 1 have indicated, we have
over 30 queuing spaces within the facility.
Refuse and garbage is to be handled by a fully enclosed dumpster area in the southeast corner of the
property with vinyl stockade fencing that we have used successfully at our other sites without incident,
and it is also aesthetically pleasing and durable.
With respect to the architectural, we have Mr. Porzio here tonight. hle is one of the developers of the site.
hle has several car washes that he owns and operates, so Vinny, if you could just talk with respect to your
brand and the aesthetic so that the Commission can better understand as well, maybe discuss
configurations, what we went through as sort of the pre-application process, so to speak before we got to
the Commission itself.
Vincent Porzio: As Mark Shipman mentioned, he said that we had three other car washes, we have
seven other washes. They are all the same footprint, the same red roof, you know the branding is pretty
much the same so that is pretty important to us. We keep a very clean site, we clean cars so we keep a
clean site. We do a lot of landscaping, making the property look appealing.
Paul Symanski: Can you speak to the modifications to the vacuums?
Vincent Porzio: Yes. You can see here, most of our sites, we use red vacuums, Renata had told us that
the vacuums may be a concern, we changed those to gray. Normally we try to do a red roof with a blue
fa?ade and we changed that blue fa?ade to gray also to keep with the other buildings in the area.
Paul Symanski: That about sums it up for a site plan perspective, an operation perspective. I'll be glad to
answer any questions that you may have.
Chairman Pane: My question is, as you head around to enter the car wash, the headlights of those cars
are going to be in the direction of the cars going north on Fenn Road. Was anything analyzed on that,
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and was that taken into consideration for any of the landscaping there. If you could explain that a little I'd
appreciate it.
Attorney Shipman: Paul, if you could, it looks to me that the entry of the cars is from west to east as
opposed to north/south.
Paul Symanski: 1 think the concern is when you, after you leave those pay stations you are then traveling
in a direction where traffic going northbound on Fenn Road, if it was at the same elevation would
potentially have a conflict from the headlights. What we did in this case to minimize that kind of potential
glare of headlights, as well as to lowerthe overall building height, so to speak, we are actually proposing
an excavation in that area so that the actual elevation of the driveway in that area is 113 and the roadway
elevation is about four feet higher, so the headlights themselves will be below the actual road elevation.
We also have a row of shall shrubs, hydrangeas and other things in that area to provide additional
screening.
Chairman Pane: Very good. Thank you very much. That addresses my concerns, 1 appreciate it.
Commissioner Gilt: Signage, as far as the address, that needs to be on the Fenn Road side of the
building. 1 also have some questions about the, well let's start off with the roadway between the
properties, have we decided where the sidewalk is going to be? Is it going to be on the west side, 1
mean, yes, the west side or the east side of that, by the hotel, or the other, the west side.
Renata Bertotti: 1 am not sure, which sidewalk are you referring to Commissioner? The one that we
discussed when the application for the hotel was discussed?
Commissioner Gill: Right where the hotel.
Renata Bertotti: My understanding is that that sidewalk will be on the hotel side of the street.
Commissioner Gill: Okay, so the crosswalk that they have here, they are showing that this crosswalk
across Myra Cohen shows that as being existing?
Attorney Shipman: The curb cut is existing.
Commissioner Gill: Yes, but does the crosswalk cross Myra Cohen?
Renata Bertotti: Commissioner Gill, if 1 may, that particular, right now under current there is a sidewalk on
that side by the Starbucks. The remainder of that street 1 believe the sidewalk will be on the opposite side
and cross over to and connect to where the Starbucks one stops. So where the crosswalk is, it meets
what is there right now.
Commissioner Gill: Okay, but there is no physical crosswalk right now across Myra Cohen?
Paul Symanski: Yes there is by our curb cuts that we are utilizing the west side of it, and then that ties
into the sidewalk on the east side of Starbucks that, the connecting road that travels from Myra Cohen
Wayoutthento 175.
Commissioner Gill: I'm just checking the picture that 1 have here, and there is no painted crosswalk
physically, out there.
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Chairman Pane: Okay, we'll look into that Commissioner. We will have staff look into that because this
is going to be on our agenda again next meeting. Are there any other questions?
Commissioner Gill: Yes. Along the, I'll call it, cross the roadway between the two parcels, again, there is
no lighting on that roadway and if we are going to put some roadway lighting in there possibly we could
use the same type of lighting that they use on Myra Cohen so it all ties in together.
Chairman Pane: Okay, we can have staff look into that too Commissioner. Anything else.
Commissioner Gill: Yes. Coming up to that, the private drive, 1 think they should put a No Left Turn sign
there because that private way is one way from Fenn going east.
Renata Bertotti: Mr. Chair, can 1 ask for clarification on this? So there is no, currently any kind of private
road or driveway between the two parcels that are subject to re-subdivision application tonight. So, I'm
trying to understand Mr. Gill, is the light in this section that you are referring to, or.
Commissioner Gill: Well, for right now, this section right here there is no lighting on that roadway.
Renata Bertotti: James, would you mind bringing up, or Paul Symanski if you would not mind bringing up
the site plan so we can take a look and see and make sure we know what we are talking about. 1 do
apologize if 1 sound confused, but I'm reallytrying to understand.
So, Mr. Gill, are you talking about this entrance driveway to their car wash that is connecting to the Stop
and Shop site?
Commissioner Gill: Right, with the arrows going north and south.
Renata Bertotti: So 1 believe this is just a driveway and it's not necessarily a continuation of the road on
the other side of the property, but the applicant perhaps can address that.
Paul Symanski: It's for the benefit of anyone to be able to utilize. If the Commission feels strongly that,
that driveway should be a little bit by our site we could accommodate that with a couple extra heads on
the existing light poles that we have, one adjacent to the dumpster, we could put a head easterly towards
that driveway and then we have a pole light adjacent to the site where we can an additional fixture as
well. That would provide coverage along the majority of that driveway, if you so desire.
Attorney Shipman: If you note from the plan, the exit from the car wash is on the south end of the
property and the turn there would be to the right. As far as the private drive, the use of that as you can
see from the arrows crossing the private drive would connect with the roadway that leads to the shopping
center. It's not necessarily just for the patrons of the car wash but for, it enhances the connection
between Myra Cohen, the hotel, the retail and the shopping center. That's the purpose of it.
Renata Bertotti: Again, if 1 may, what I'm understanding is Mr. Gill is recommending or asking you, the
applicant to incorporate the same style of lighting as it is going to be on the other side of Myra Cohen
Way on the little private road that goes from Cedar to Myra Cohen, so if you can just continue and make
sure that the design of this road including the lighting matches. Correct, Mr. Gill?
Commissioner Gill: Yes, that's, yes, wen we went over the last subdivision on Fenn Road, they didn't
have any lighting in that section also and they assured us that they were going to put lighting in there. At
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that point we did not talk about what style of lights they were going to be, but as doing a subdivision they
said that they would do that.
Chairman Pane: Anything else, Commissioner?
Commissioner Gill: Well, I'm still going back, 1 don't know where this will falt into, but as far as the
crosswalk, who is going to put that in?
Chairman Pane: We're going to look into that. This is going to be on the agenda next meeting, so
Renata can look into whether that crosswalk is there, or whether it is not there, and we will see what her
recommendation along with the Engineer's recommendation is. Renata, are you clear on everything?
Renata Bertotti: 1 believe so.
Chairman Pane: We have a couple of other Commissioners that had questions.
Commissioner Sobieski: All crosswalks have to be approved by the STC since this is a state road. Like 1
said, they would approve the crosswalk with the additional signage or whatever is desired. As far as
Commissioner Gills's remarks about the cut through road, 1 believe what he was saying is that the
driveway between Fenn Road and (inaudible) is one way, then it becomes two way. 1 think that if you are
going to use it as a cut through you might want to think about enhancing the Do Not Enter signs or
whatever to indicate that that would remain a one way street. Someone coming up could make a left,
then a quick right and go into the restaurant, but not go strait up and go out the one way section. 1 think
that is what he was talking about.
Commissioner Haggerty: There is a pre-existing crosswalk already there coming from Starbucks,
crossing over into this projected property. The second comment 1 would agree with some lighting along
that new driveway, 1 think that's a good idea. Three, kind of echoing Commission Sobieski,
Commissioner Gill about people turning off of Fenn Road, down that private driveway, that is one way so
some sort of consideration should be taken for people who are going to be exiting this property into the
Stop and Shop, not to be funneling too much traffic left there. My last question, is there a preposed
pedestrian sidewalk on the western side of the property, along Fenn Road?
Paul Symanski: That's correct, there is a new proposed sidewalk to connect with the existing brick
landing area so to speak at the intersection of Myra Cohen and Fenn, it will be a new sidewalk that will
now run along Fenn Road on the westerly portion of this property.
Commissioner Haggerty: 1 ask that because in speaking of the property development south of this, we
were kind of hesitant on putting pedestrian sidewalks along Fenn Road, given the proximity to the
business of Fenn Road. 1 don't know if any of the other Commissioners have concerns about that. We
were trying to funnel pedestrian traffic away from Fenn Road as much as possible. Just a thought.
Renata Bertotti: Please don't remove this little section of the sidewalk. hlonestly, as 1 have stated with
the previous application, 1 feel really strongly that in a TOD area the sidewalks are like a necessary
element of it. At the minimum, in this particular location, this sidewalk will connect anybody crossing over
at the light in front of this Plaza and going over into the Mooyah and Stop and Shop Plaza. So, you know,
you really, it is a little bit of a stretch to expect people to cross over, go, and walk behind the car wash into
order to enter the Stop and Shop Plaza, so we are removing elements of connectivity that are essentially
given to us and 1 would ask you not to do that please.
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Chairman Pane: 1 think when we were talking about the southern property the reason was, 1 think, at
Myra Cohen Way, is where you cross over Fenn Road, there is a cross area there, and then there is a
sidewalk on the opposite side of Fenn Road, so1 believe that was the situation.
Commissioner Haggerty: That's fine, I'm not against a sidewalk there, it was just, that's fine. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Are there any other Commissioner comments? If the applicant doesn't have anything,
or Renata, 1 think that we are going to be reviewing this again at our next meeting, 1 think we can move
on, unless the applicant has anything that they would like to add.
Paul Symanski: Just that we appreciate your time and consideration.
Attorney Shipman: Just as a matter of course, since it was raised, 1 would appreciate comments on the
architecture, so we have some idea of whether, we would like to retain the red roof if possible and if that
is not objectionable to the Commission, we can certainly be amenable to other changes.
Chairman Pane: 1 will ask the Commissioners now, 1 didn't hear any problems with that. Commissioners,
do you have anything that you would like to say considering the architectural details on this project, as far
as the roof, or coloring or anything like that, or the height of the building?
Commissioner Woods: 1 have no issues, 1 think it's a very well designed building, 1 actually like the color
contrast, 1 actually don't even have an issue with the red vacuum cleaners. 1 know that Renata brought it
up, I'm not quite sure who would be opposed to that, but it doesn't bother me. Again, we are looking at
brighter, bolder colors now on new buildings and 1 actually like the look, 1 think it will fit in well in that
neighborhood.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Commissioner Woods. Any other Commissioners like to talk
about the architecture, or the colors, or the height? Is everybody satisfied, just so that we can give some
direction to the applicant.
Commissioner Fox; One quick comment, kind of piggy-backing on what CommissionerWoods said, I'm
hoping that the rest of the development around that area, the hotel and everything else will fit in as well,
so that they all kind of blend and you have the same architecture for all of them.
Commissioner Sobieski: 1 like the design and the red roof is their trade mark and that is fine. 1 still don't
quite understand the issue with the red vacuums, but whatever, it's a very well designed building, 1 think
they have done an outstanding job, even taking into consideration the headlights on Fenn Road so it's
well designed, and I'm pleased with it. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Any other Commissioners have any questions or comments? I think Attorney Shipman
that you got your answers.
Renata Bertotti: Mr. Chair, before you just move off of this, you know the architecture, as Attorney
Shipman stated at the beginning of the meeting, the architecture elements are subjective. When 1 looked
at this, 1 was under the impression that this was a little too much with the color contrast and all of these
other things, but if the Commission has a preference then perhaps the applicant would like to go back to
their red vacuums because 1 believe that is somewhat part of their trend as well for their branding. They
removed that color on my recommendation because 1 felt that you would want it somewhere muted down,
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so if you don't minD talking about that forjust a minute, and make sure that if red is not a problem that
they know that, and they can go back to what they wish in the first place.
Paul Symanski: It is part of the brand, we have them in every single facility, this would be the first without
it, so we would greatly appreciate that consideration.
Chairman Pane: Very good Renata, thank you, 1 don't have a problem with the red vacuums on there.
Commissioner Woods: 1 think we need to do everything we can, and the applicant is actually more than
willing to do it, to make them stand out. People have a hard enough time finding their way around, some
of these new buildings and 1 think anything we can do to make it stand out, they're going to be looking for
vacuums either before or after they get their car washed, so let's not try to hide them or blend them into
the property, we want them to be able to get right to them, in my opinion.
Commissioner Sobieski: 1 just wanted to concur with Commissioner Woods, I think the red vacuums, if
that is part of their trade mark, they should be allowed to have them. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Any other Commissioners have any comments concerning that? Anybody else? I'm
going to assume that there is no objection to the red color and the applicant can proceed to change that
back. Thank you very much and we will look forward to seeing, finalizing this presentation hopefully
soon, at our next meeting, or it might take a little longer because of the additional work that you are doing,
but thank you.
If there is no objection, we are going to move on.
XI.

OLD BUSINESS

Commissioner Fox left the meeting, to be replaced by Commissioner Braverman at 8:55 p.m.
A. Petition 19-21: Special Permit (Sec. 3.19) and Associated Site Plan to construct
a residential Apartment Development in the PD Zone, at 3333 Berlin Turnpike,
Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company Applicant, HJG-PC Newington Investor
LLC. Contact BL Companies.
I.

Petition 20-21: Special Permit (Sec. 3.19 and 3.15) and associated site plan to
allow a restaurant in the PD Zone, at 3333 Berlin Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky
River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC Newington Investor LLC Contact, BL
Companies.

J.

Petition 21-21: Soecial Permit (Sec 3.19 and 3.15) and Associated Site Plan to
allow a place of physical activity or recreation in the PD Zone at 3333 Berlin
Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC
Newington Investor LLC Contact, BL Companies

K.

Petition 22-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.19 and 3.15) and associated site plan to
allow a brew pub or a brew pub restaurant in the PD Zone at 3333 Berlin
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Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC Newington
Investor LLC Contact BL Companies
Petition 23-21: Soecial Permit (Sec 3.19.3) and Site Plan Approval to allow a retail
development in excess of 40,000 square feet in the PD Zone, at 3333 Berlin
Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC Newington
Investor LLC. Contact BL Companies.
Chairman Pane: The applicant is here, 1 have a couple of questions. There is a deferral of
some parking and 1 was wondering, is that deferral throughout the entire project, or is it based
more on the apartments or, if you could explain that a little bit?
Chris Smith: For the record, Chris Smith of Alter and Pearson. I apologize, I'm a little confused
with the public hearing having been closed, 1 don't think we can respond to questions, 1 think
Renata can certainly respond to that. She knows the answer to it, but 1 think with the hearing
being close Mr. Chairman, we cannot respond because the hearing is closed at this point. 1
apologize, but again, with the hearing being closed, we are not in a position to be able to
respond, but again 1 certainly think Renata can certainly respond.
Renata Bertotti: Quite frankly, this is just a clarifying matter because it is described in my
memo, this deferral applies only to the development of the residential property in this case, and
it is specifically under our provisions in the regulations that talk about joint use of parking. There
are commercial developments next door and the deferral is on the parcel that contains just the
residential development. Again, the deferral for clarification is not a waiver. All that it means
under our regulations, is that they right now are, if the Commission agrees with the request,
allowed to not construct all of the parking immediately because it is their assessment, and 1 said
that it wasn't needed, once, if ever in the future there is a need for this, the Commission can
require that parking be added. They have designed it on the plans and indicated where it would
be, and they have to construct it within six months.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata, 1 appreciate that.
from any of the Commissioners?

Are there any questions

A. Petition 19-21: SDecial Permit (Sec. 3.19) and Associated Site Plan to construct
a residential Apartment Development in the PD Zone, at 3333 Berlin Turnpike,
Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company Applicant, HJG-PC Newington Investor
LLC. Contact BL Companies.
B.
Commissioner Sobieski moved to approve the deferral of construction of the twenty-five percent
of the required parking spaces under the joint use, off street parking provision Section 6.1.1 .E,
of the Zoning Regulations.
1 move the approval of the special permit for construction of residential apartments in the PD
Zone.
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CONDITIONS
1. The applicant will install flashing speed signs on Pane Road in both directions to help
with the speed mitigation.
2. The Town will assume the equipment maintenance
3. The town will stripe and fog line on Pane Road in the areas near the driveway to better
define the travel lane. The Town witl maintain this as well and will do other line stripping
in the road.
4. Plans and documents will be incorporated from the Town Engineer.

REASONS FOR THE APPROVAL.
1.

The proposal is consistent with the Newington Plan of Conservation and Development
and meets the special permit and site plan criteria Sections 5.2, 5.3, of the Newington
Planning and Zoning Regulations.

Commissioner Havens seconded the motion. After a roll call vote the motion was passed
unanimously with seven voting YEA.
Petition 20-21: Special Permit (Sec. 3.19 and 3.15) and associated site plan to allow
a restaurant in the PD Zone, at 3333 Berlin Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky River
Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC Newington Investor LLC Contact, BL
Companies.
Commissioner Haggerty moved to approve the special permit to allow restaurants use in the PD
Zone with conditions:
1.

Plans and documents will incorporate comments from the Town Engineer.

Reasons for the Approval:
The proposal is consistent with the Newington Plan of Conservation and Development. It meets
the speciat permit and site plan criteria in Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of the Newington Zoning
Regulations.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sobieski. After a rotl call vote, the motion was
passed unanimously with seven voting YEA.
Petition 21-21: SDecial Permit (Sec 3.19 and 3.15) and Associated Site Plan to allow
a place of physical activity or recreation in the PD Zone at 3333 Berlin Turnpike,
Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC Newington Investor
LLC Contact, BL Companies.

Newington TPZ Commission

May 26, 2021
Page 27

Commissioner Woods moved to approve the special permit to allow physical activity or
recreation use in the PD Zone. Plans and Documents will incorporate comments from the Town
Engineer.
Reason for the Approval:
The proposal is consistent with the Newington Plan of Conservation and Development and
meets the special permit and site plan criteria in Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of the Newington Zoning
Regulations.
Commissioner Woods: Just one comment, so far in the conditions, it actually should read will
incorporate, and each one of them is written as will incorporated. If we could just drop the "d"
on all of those. 1 think it reads much better.
Chairman Pane: Okay.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sobieski. After a roll call vote, the motion was
passed unanimously with seven voting YEA.
Petition 22-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.19 and 3.15) and associated site plan to allow
a brew pub or a brew pub restaurant in the PD Zone at 3333 Berlin Turnpike, Owner,
the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC Newington Investor LLC
Contact BL Companies.
Commissioner Sobieski moved to approve the special permit to allow brew pub or a brew pub
restaurant for use in the PD Zone.
Conditions:
1.

Plans and Documents will be incorporated to include (inaudible) and comments from the
Town Engineer.

Reasons for the Approval:
The plan is consistent with the Newington Plan of Conservation and Development and meets
the special permit and site plan criteria in Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of the Newington Zoning
Regulations.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Woods. After a roll call vote, the motion passed
unanimously with seven voting YEA.
Petition 23-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.19.3) and Site Plan Approval to allow a retail
development in excess of 40,000 square feet in the PD Zone, at 3333 Berlin
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Turnpike, Owner, the Rocky River Realty Company, Applicant HJG-PC Newington
Investor LLC. Contact BL Companies.
Commissioner Haggerty moved to approve the special permit to allow a retail development of
40,000 square feet in a PD Zone.
Conditions:
1. Plans and documents will incorporate comments from the Town Engineer
Reasons for the Approval:
The proposal is consistent with Newington's Plan of Conservation and Development and meets
the special permit and site plan criteria in Sections 5.2 and 5.3.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sobieski. After a roll call vote, the motion passed
unanimously with seven voting YEA.
Chairman Pane: I'd like to congratulate the owners and the applicants and the attorney on
3333,1 think this is going to be a fantastic project for the Town of Newington, and thank you for
comlng in.
Petition 24-21: Special Permit (Sec. 3.2.7) to allow a religious event at 155 Lowrey
Place, Applicant: Church Catedral De Adoracoa, Owner; Lowrey Place Realty, LLC,
Contact Fernanda DeLisle.
Commissioner Claffey moved to approve the special permit to allow a one time outdoor religious
event at the above referenced location.
Conditions:
1.

Plans and documents will be modified per May 26, 2021 memo from the Town
Engineer.

Reasons for Approval:
The proposal meets the special permit and site plan criteria in Section 5.2 and 5.3 of the
Newington Zoning Regulations.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sobieski. The vote was unanimously in favor of
the motion, with seven voting YEA.
Chairman Pane: 1 think that's it for the motions, right Renata?
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Renata Bertotti: Mr. Chair, you may act on the re-subdivision application tonight for the Petition
for 12 or 14 Fenn Road. If you would like to act on that application, like l said, it's an
administrative decision. The proposal meets the requirements of both Zoning and Subdivision
regulations and 1 have no objections. Moving forward, the special permit application you may or
may not want to act on tonight as you had discussed the special permit petition for the car wash,
you have 1 believe determined that a use is suited for this location and you have no objections to
the architecture or general layout of the site plan. So, with that in mind, you also can act on that
one if you wish, or you can table that until you get a final site plan to review and act on those
two applications together. That is a choice that you have tonight. The application that you can
not act on is the site plan. That is the only one.
Chairman Pane: 1 think what we will do is, if we can put the motion up for 14-21 and then the
other two we will address when we get a final report on the variance. 14-21 is a re-subdivision
at 16 Fenn Road.
Petition 14-21: Resubdivision at 16 Fenn Road to create one additional lot, PD and TOD
Overlay Zone, Applicant, Vincent Porzio & Dominick D'Agostino, Owner; Fenn Road
Associates LLC, Contact Mark S. Shipman
Commissioner Claffey moved to approve the re-subdivision at 16 Fenn Road.
Reasons for the Approval:
The proposed re-subdivision meets requirements of Newington Zoning and subdivision
regulations.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sobieski. The vote was unanimously in favor of
the motion, with seven voting YEA.
IX.

PETITIONS FOR PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULING

A.

Petition 26-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.4.9) to allow interior lots at 285 Connecticut
Avenue, Applicant and Contact: Larry Webster, Owner JCB Management, LLC.

B.

Petition 28-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.4.9) to allow interior tots at 293 Connecticut
Avenue, Applicant and Contact: Larry Webster, Owner JCB Management, LLC.

C. Petition 29-21: Zoning Text Amendment (Sec 3.19.1) to allow a drive through restaurant
in the PD Zone, Applicant: Gibbs Oil Company, Contact Kenneth R. Slater, Jr. Esq.
D. Petition 30-21: Special Permit (Sec 3.19.5) to allow the demolition of an existing car
wash and the replacement of the car wash with a new gas convenience store including a
Dunkin Donuts Restaurant with a drive through at 129 Willard Avenue, Applicant, Gibbs
Oil Company, Owner: Gibbs Oil Company LTD, Contact Kenneth R. Slater, Jr. Esq.
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E. Petition 31 -21: Special Permit (Sec 6.2.5) to allow a free standing 300 square foot sign
at the southwest corner of 16 Fenn Road, Applicant; Vincent Porzio & Dominic
D'Agostino, Owner, Fenn Road Associates, LLD Contact Mark S. Shipman.
X.

TOWN PLANNER REPORT

Renata Bertotti: We had listed on the agenda as well as in my current land use application
document that, like 1 said is posted on line. All of the applications that are received in my office,
the ones that are scheduled for public hearing are on the agenda for the meeting. There are
some other applications that are site plans and things like that, that are just shown on the future
agenda.
1 wanted to briefly touch on, on the next meeting I, depending on the load, application load, we
have in front of us at the next meeting agenda, I, if it's not very heavy, 1 am going to present to
you either proposed preliminary revisions to the B Zone as we talked before, and then the next
meeting after that I'll try to work on the Newington Junction, some preliminary language for that
regulations, so I'm kind of putting these projects in between our business that we have, petitions
that come in to the office from the outside.
Lastly I will tell you that some of you know but there is a legislative, there were a series of
legislature proposals pending in front of the Planning and Development State Commission.
Most of those actualty didn't make it through the House. One of the bills related to zoning has
been passed by the House of Representatives and is now pending at the Senate. That
particular bill includes certain provisions in regards to the accessory dwelling unit, there are
certain provisions for parking and certain provisions for mandatory training for the
Commissioners. They call it mandatory, but it doesn't really have consequences if not, so 1
would like to be, at this point, to see the final version of this bill go through the Senate and if
they do any modifications then 1 believe we should present the document and talk about
provisions of it that allow you know, towns to either thing A, or opt out of it, and then at least the
bill that is passed through the House includes what needs to be done in order to opt out of these
requirements, so that is the plan going forward. 1 would just leave this alone until we have the
final bill that we can talk about and then plan on how we are going to deal with that.
Chairman Pane: 1 definitely agree with you Renata, once we get that final bill we may want to
look at that, and have the Commissioners talk about it and see if we want to opt out of it. Are
there any other questions from the Commissioners for Renata?
XI.

COMMUNICATIONS
None

XII.

PUBIC PARTICIPATION (For items not listed on the agenda; speakers limited to two
minutes.)
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Rose Lyons, 46 Elton Drive: I'm guessing that there must have been some technical difficulties
because 1 lost you up until about a minute ago. Just was curious, if you could tell me if the 3333
Berlin Turnpike application passed or not.
Chairman Pane: Yes, 3333, all of the petitions concerning 3333 all passed unanimously.
Rose Lyons: Okay, thank you very much.
Caro Santoro: Thank you, all of you, 1 just wanted to say that 1 appreciate your persistence in
trying to get us back on line. A lot of it was garbled, we did not talk about Newington Junction
tonight did we, because 1 was cut off too.
Chairman Pane: No, we didn't talk about that.
Caro Santoro: Okay, just wanted to thank you for your persistence.
Chairman Pane: Thank you.
Renata Bertotti: t may be speaking out of order, but for the benefit of Ms. Santoro, because 1
believe they didn't hear my report, Ms. Santoro, please either call me or just follow up the future
agenda, the future agenda because 1 know I have something that 1 will present to the
Commission. 1 will try to post it at least two weeks ahead of time, so you neighbors have a little
bit of notice on it.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Renata. Is there anybody else from the public who would like to
speak?
XVI. REMARKS BY COMMISSIONERS
None
XV. CLOSING REMARKS BY THE CHAIRMAN
None
XVI. ADJOURN
CommissionerWoods moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Sobieski. The meeting was adjourned at 9:40 p.m.
Respectully submitted,

e Addis,
Recolfding Secretary

STATEMENT TO THE COMMISSION FOR APPLICATION 15-21

Section 6.11 deals with automotive uses. It requires fuel dispenser to be 30 feet from any street
or right of way line. This application has no such equipment. It further requires repairs to be
contained in a building. No repairs will be done on this site. There are no entrances or exits
within 100 feet of a church, school, playground or residence No portion of the lot is within 100
feet of a residence. The building fagade is constructed of a combination of materials that meet
the standards of 6.11.6., there are no adjacent buildings as a road separates the parcel from
other buildings on the south and a right of way does so on the north. There are currently no
buildings on the parcels to the south. Beyond the right of way, there is a restaurant and further
north a shopping center The proposed building provides a good appearance and will blend with
those and is in harmony with the neighborhood. We believe that there is a necessity for the
use. Not everyone has the time, the ability or the facilities to care for their vehicles. There is no
other car wash in proximity to this location. There are fleet owners who require their vehicles to
be clean. Most drivers want to drive clean vehicles. This location serves a large section of the
town.
The general standards and requirements for all special permits are set forth in Section 5.3 which
requires the Commission to review the site plans submitted with the application. The section
states that in reviewing the site plans the Commission shall consider the following, as well as
the conditions and standards herein. Applications should also refer to Section 7.4, Design
Standard and site plan checklist.
1.

The existing and planned future character of the adjacent property.

The neighboring underdeveloped parcels have been approved for a hotel and a small retail
complex. To the rear of the property is the State of Connecticut's bus station. The proposed
use is compatible in that it provides a convenience to commuters who may wish to wash their
vehicles . It is also consistent with the nearby gas station. It is also on a main road leading to
West Hartford and is the only car wash within a fairly substantial radius. The nearby National
Welding property is contemplated to have a large number of residential units which would
logically avail themselves of this service.
2. Traffic circulation within the site; amount, location and access to parking; traffic
generated and possible traffic hazard or circulation problems on existing drives or
streets.
As is shown in the site plan, the site will have on-site stacking for 33 vehicles and will not result
on any backup on Myra Cohen Way.
3.

Availability and adequacy of public utilities serving the site and the adequacy of the
existing and proposed stormwater system to accommodate any increased drainage.
(Effective 12-01-01.)

The plan shows the availability of the utilities to the site. The engineer will discuss the
connections and the permissions obtained.
4.

The location of signage, lighting and natural or landscape features.

The site ptan shows the landscaping and we have submitted plans for the signage.

Information on Petition 15-21
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Safeguards to protect adjacent property and the neighborhood in general from detriment
or depreciation.

The engineer will show or discuss the buffering and landscaping. The site is bordered by two
roads and is not closely adjacent to any other property and the design is in keeping with the
neighborhood.
6.

The suitability of the building design to its site.

The building design is one which the applicant has used at two other locations and is
considered part of the branding. While staff has indicated it would prefer another design, we
present this to you for your consideration.
7.

Safeguards to promote the convenience of travel and the orderly use of land through
the safe location of driveways, the number, size, and access points to a site in
relationship to adjacent properties and the public roads.

As indicated and as shown on the site plan, the site is designed to stack all of the cars on the
site. The volume of cars that can reasonably to expected can be qued on the site. The
driveways, both internal and external are designed to accommodate the volume of cars and as
the engineer will explain can handle cars and trucks safely.
We have asked to two waivers in accordance with the incentives Provisions of the TOD Zone.
1.

In accordance with Section 3.19.A.4.A of the Regulations, to reduce the required
landscaping to 3.150 square feet or 6.8% of the total lot area, of interior landscaping as
opposed to the 10% required by Section 6.10.1 of the Newington Regulations.

2.

In accordance with the provisions 3.19.A.4.A of the regulations to decrease the 5'
required setback of the retaining wall is 0.2' (2.5")

The engineer will explain the necessity for the waivers.
We have also been advised that the TOD Zone does not provide an incentive to permit a waiver
of the radius requirements. The engineer will discuss the issue. We have applied for a variance
of the radius requirement. We are requesting permission from the State to replace the catch
basins with those that would be flat to the surface. The problem is the result of the raised catch
basins and the fact that the crosswalk required handicapped ramps. We would ask that you
approve us, subject to our either obtaining the variance or being able to redesign the curb cut to
satisfy the requirements.
8. We have satisfied the requirements of Section 7.4 by submitting the Site Plan with the
Special Permit Application.

